City of Mora
Kanabec County, Minnesota Mora City Hall
: 101 Lake St. S
Meeting Agenda Mora, MN 55051
City Council

Tuesday, September 20, 2022 6:30 PM Mora City Hall

N

10.

11.

Call to Order/ Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Adopt Agenda (No item of business shall be considered unless it appears on the agenda for the meeting. Council members may add
items to the agenda prior to adoption of the agenda.)

Consent Agenda (Those items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be acted upon
by one motion under this agenda item. There will be no separate discussion of these items, unless a Council Member so requests, in which
event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered immediately after the adoption of the consentagenda.)

a. Regular Meeting Minutes — August 18, 2022

b. Regular Meeting Minutes — September 6, 2022

¢. August Claims

d. Massage Therapist License Renewal — Asolare Yoga & Wellness, LLC

Open Forum (individuals may address the council about any item not contained on the regular agenda. There is a maximum offifteen
(15) minutes set aside for open forum. A maximum of three (3) minutes is allotted per person. The City Council will take no official action
on items discussed at the forum, with the exception of referral to staff for future report.)

Special Business

Mortgage Satisfaction Document — Fred Holm?

Taxicab Business License — Cabworxs LLP

Massage Therapist Business License — Oslowski Therapy
Tobacco License — Kings Mart #46

Tobacco License — Mora Tobacco & E-Cig

®m oo oo

Public Hearings
a. none

New Business
a. North County Bottle Shop — Maintenance / Repair Request
b. Audit Firm Selection
c. Lease Software Purchase — GASB 87 and GASB 96 Compliance

Old Business
a. SEH- Grove Street Payment Request #4
b. 2023 Preliminary Budget- Resolution
c. Reimbursement Resolution- CIP Request
d. Airport Hangar Lease Agreement

Communications
a. Quarterly Financial Reports
KCSO Monthly Report — Pending
MAFD Monthly Report — August 2022
Planning Commission Meeting Minutes — September 2022
Airport Board Meeting Minutes — September 2022
Park Board Meeting Minutes
HRA Meeting Minutes
EDA Meeting Minutes

Sm@ o oo o

Reports



City Administrator
Councilmember Anderson
Councilmember Broekemeier
Councilmember Mathison
Councilmember Shepard
Mayor Skramstad

I B o N o B o gl <V}

12. Adjournment



City Council Meeting Minutes
August 18, 2022

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Mayor Alan Skramstad called to order the regular meeting of the
Mora City Council at 6:30 PM on Thursday, August 18, 2022 in the city hall council chambers.

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 6:30PM

2. Roll Call: Mayor Skramstad, Councilmembers Jody Anderson, Jake Mathison, Kyle Shepard.
Absent: Councilmember Sadie Broekemeier

3. Adopt Agenda: MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Mathison, and unanimously carried to
approve the agenda.
Staff Present: Glenn Andersson City Administrator, Natasha Segelstrom Administrative Services
Director, Joe Kohlgraf Public Works Director, Kirsten Faurie Community Development Director,
Caleb Christenson Building Official.

4. Consent Agenda: MOTION made by Anderson, seconded by Shepard and unanimously carried to
approve the consent agenda as presented.
a. Joint Meeting Minutes —July 19, 2022
b. Regular Meeting Minutes —July 19, 2022
c. July 2022 Claims
d. Gambling Permit — Vasaloppet Inc.
e. Approve Restricted Donations Resolution 2022-821
f. Approve Special Event Permit- Mora Fly-in
g. Fall Fest 2022- Special Event Permit
h. Resignation Firefighter- Hunter Fore

5. Open Form: Vicki Vandervegt spoke to the council and provided information on a transitional
shelter in Pine City. She believed this was a resource in the community. Vandervegt continued to
discuss the various programs offered on site and asked for the council’s consideration for a
charitable donation to assist and included a handout with the program information along with
details from the annual report. The council thanked her for sharing and that they would discuss
possible contributions later.

6. Special Business

a. Letter to Governor Walz — Special Legislative Session — Resolution No 2022-822
Skramstad introduced a letter to Governor Walz requesting additional a Special
Legislative Session, in addition, a Resolution which requested a Special Session and
detailed funding for the Lake Mora outlet pipe and the bonding bill. MOTION made by
Mathison, seconded by Shepard and unanimously carried by the council to approve the
letter to Governor Walz requesting a Special Legislative Session and to approve
Resolution No. 2022-822.

(SEE ATTACHED RESOLUTION)



City Council Meeting Minutes

August 18, 2022

b.

2023 Budget Public Utilities Commissioner Wage Consideration: At the Joint Meeting in
July, the PUC had suggested for consideration a salary increase. The consensus was to
have the increase budgeted for but was not formally approved. MOTION made by
Shepard, seconded by Mathison and unanimously carried to approve the salary increase
of $4000 for the Public Utilities Commission Chair and $3500 for the Public Utilities
Commissioners.

7. Public Hearings: There were no public hearings.

8. NewBu
a.

siness:

Property Liability Insurance Follow-Up: Yoder discussed the property liability insurance
deductible amounts as previously discussed at the July Joint City Council / Public Utilities
Commission meeting. She explained over the past three years, there had been 25
claims, the difference in premium amounts between the $2500 and $500 deductible and
a total savings of 528,258 over the three-year period if the City had raised the
deductible. Yoder stated this information had been presented to the PUC at their
meeting on earlier that week and that the PUC recommended the approval to increase
the deductible to the City Council. The Council further discussed the number of claims
and potential impact. Councilmember Anderson discussed previous reports that had
been provided to the Council when an incident occurred, and Yoder offered to run the
reports if the Council desired. MOTION made by Anderson, seconded by Mathison, and
unanimously approved to increase the deductible to $2500 for the Property Insurance
Liability for 2023.

New Taxicab Business License Application — Attaboys, Inc. Yoder brought forward a
business license application. She explained that Attaboys taxicab business had been sold
and with the change of ownership, the license needed Council approval per city code.
Yoder explained the business met the requirements and recommended approval.
MOTION made by Mathison, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried to approve
the taxicab license for Attaboys, Inc..

New Taxicab Business License Application — Cabworxs, LLP Yoder brought forward
Cabworxs, LLC business application. She explained that not all the criteria had been met
for the business license. The addresses listed on the application were past due property
taxes and there were no driver’s listed, or insurance provided. Yoder stated the initial
consideration had been to deny the request, however, the City Administrator Glenn
Anderson wanted to promote business in town and to bring it forward. Councilmember
Anderson expressed concern of denying the request based on the property taxes, when
the properties listed on the application were not in the applicant’s name. The Council
expressed concerns with a previous Taxi business and wanted to ensure there would not
be any questions or concerns later for noncompliance. Councilmember Anderson
suggested the application be tabled for discussion. MOTION made by Mathison,
seconded by Anderson to table the discussion for Cabworxs, LLC.



City Council Meeting Minutes
August 18, 2022

d.

Insurance Agent of Record: Yoder brought forward insurance agent of record. She
explained that our current agent would expire at the end of the year and the agent was
retiring. The city would need to go out for a request for proposal. Due to the type of
insurance and size of the community, Yoder brought forward communication from the
city attorney and questions that staff had about conflict of interest if the insurance
agent of record were a member of an appointed board. Yoder detailed a previous agent
of record and their board membership. MOTION Made by Shepard, seconded by
Anderson to approve the request for proposal for insurance agent of record.

Out of State Travel Policy — Resolution 2022-823 Segelstrom brought forward an Out of
State Travel Policy and explained that in the 2021 annual financial audit, BerganKDV
identified the city was not in legal compliance with the out of state travel policy and
recommended approval. Glenn Anderson explained that the PUC had recommended
approval for a training request in Massachusetts, contingent on the out of state travel
policy approval by City Council. MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Mathison, and
unanimously approved by the City Council to approve the Out of State Travel Policy
Resolution No. 2022-823.

(SEE ATTACHED RESOLUTION)

Property Transaction — Quit Claim Deed Kanabec County — Resolution 2022-824
Kohlgraf brought forward a property transaction or property South of Maple Avenue
and Grove Street. This would provide access from the future outlet pipe from Lake Mora
to the holding pond. The parcel would allow city access for the future infrastructure but
would also allow right-of-way for the county and further explained that the surrounding
area was private property and future access may not be available. MOTION made by
Anderson, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously carried to approve to approve
Resolution No. 2022-824.

(SEE ATTACHED RESOLUTION)

Northstar Pontoon Subordination Agreement- Derek Carlson spoke before the City
Council requesting a subordination agreement for Northstar Pontoons. He explained
that the city would be in third position and the intended loan would assist with
obtaining a new investor. Carlson stated that $40,000 would be put into an escrow
account due to the stipulations outlined in the grant from the city for the land. The
Council asked if the three-to-five-year plan included an increase of workers at the
business, Carlson agreed. Skramstad stated that the EDA board recommended the
approval to Council. MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Mathison, and
unanimously approved by the Council to approve the subordination agreement
contingent on the city attorney’s advice.

Conditional Use Permit- Solar First Presbyterian Church — Resolution No. 2022-825
Community Development Director Faurie presented a conditional use permit for the
installation of Solar Panels at First Presbyterian Church. The Planning Commission
conducted a Public Hearing and staff did not have any issues with the permit and



City Council Meeting Minutes
August 18, 2022

recommended approval. Council discussed the need for the Conditional Use Permit

when there had been an Ordinance in place for solar panels and the added cost for the

permit. Council asked staff to look at the added step and whether it could be removed.

MOTION made Anderson, seconded by Mathison and unanimously carried to approve
(SEE ATTACHED RESOLUTION)

Conditional Use Permit- McLean Street — Resolution No. 2022-826- Faurie detailed the

residential application for solar panels and the permit met the criteria, she was

informed that the microinverter on the equipment was discontinued and installer must

resubmit a plan and have the electrical engineer review. MOTION made by Anderson,

seconded by Mathison, and unanimously carried to approve Resolution No. 2022-826.
(SEE ATTACHED RESOLUTION)

Cemetery Road improvement- Kohlgraf requested consideration to use project money
set aside in the Capital Improvement Plan. He stated $35,000 had been set aside and
requested to move forward with the cemetery road improvements. MOTION made by
Shepard, seconded by Anderson and unanimously carried to approve the cemetery road
improvements.

9. Old Business

Grove Street Improvement Updates / Payment No. 3 Request Douglas Kerr
Underground Greg Anderson of SEH provided an update on the Grove Street Project
noting the project was moving along and the pipes would be installed soon and hopes to
have the paving complete by Labor Day if all went to plan. If there were delays, the bus
traffic will detour. MOTION made by Mathison, seconded by Shepard, and unanimously
carried to approve payment request No. 3 payable to Douglas Kerr Underground, LLC for
the amount $357,088.07.

b. 9t Street Turn Lane- MN Department of Transportation Local Partnership Program:

Greg Anderson of SEH explained that the program application had been approved
through the local partnership program. For the project to move forward with the City
would need to enter an agreement to begin the engineering for the project. The City
would be repaid for the construction costs in FY 2026 and would need to carry the
negative balance until FY 2026. The City would be responsible for the design costs SEH.
The Council discussed the City’s efforts for the 9*" Street Turn Lane and asked whether
the school would pay for this, as the school stated their efforts on the local radio station
towards the project and the dedicated turn lane and if the City Could afford the project.
Segelstrom explained that a new project fund would be created, and the fund would
have a negative balance until the repayment in FY2026. MOTION made Shepard,
seconded by Mathison and unanimously carried to approve the design for the 9*" Street
Turn Lane.

c. Law Enforcement Contract Special Meeting/Follow-up: Glenn Anderson provided an

update on the Law Enforcement Contract and provided copies of surrounding



City Council Meeting Minutes
August 18, 2022

communities and their contracts. Councilmember Anderson stated she would like to
have another meeting to discuss this information. It would review items and language
that no longer apply. MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Anderson and carried to

have a Work Session to review the Law Enforcement Contract was set for October 18,
2022 at 4:30pm.

10. Communications: The Communications were reviewed.

MAFD July Monthly Report

Park Board Meeting Minutes

Airport Board Meeting Minutes: Councilmember Anderson stated that a draft of the
Land Lease Agreement would be at the next meeting and the Fly-In

d. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes

Driver’s License Committee Meeting Update The committee met, and additional
information had been looked into and there would be a follow-up. There were no
updates on the estimates, but they could be reduced. Shepard stated that the amount
could be lessened, and Anderson explained the windows reduce the expense.

11. Reports

a.

=0 a0

City Administrator: Provided an update on our electricity rates from SMMPA and there
may be an increase 10-15%.

Councilmember Anderson: The KCSO put a speed cart to reduce traffic and its helped.
The Fire Department honored their retirees. A few concerns that had been presented to
her were forwarded to the city administrator.

Councilmember Broekemeier: Absent.

Councilmember Mathison: Nothing new to report.

Councilmember Shepard: Fall Fest was coming. There would be a BBQ cook off.

Mayor Skramstad: Thanked staff for their work. Add contribution discussion to the work
session in October.

12. Adjournment: MOTION by Shepard, seconded by Anderson, and unanimously carried to
adjourn at 7:35PM.

Mayor

City Clerk



City Council Meeting Minutes
September 06, 2022

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof Mayor Alan Skramstad called to order the regular meeting of the
Mora City Council at 6:30 PM on Tuesday, September 06, 2022 in the city hall council Chambers.

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 6:30PM

2. Roll Call: Mayor Skramstad, Councilmembers Jody Anderson, Jake Mathison, Sadie Broekemeier,
Kyle Shepard.

3. Adopt Agenda: MOTION made by Shepard, seconded by Anderson, and unanimously carried to
approve the agenda.
Staff Present: Glenn Andersson City Administrator, Natasha Segelstrom Administrative Services
Director, Joe Kohlgraf Public Works Director, Sara King Accountant, Kirsten Faurie Community
Development Director, Caleb Christenson Building Official.

4. Consent Agenda
a. There are no items on the consent agenda.

5. Open Form: No one spoke at open forum.

6. Special Business
a. ISD # 332 Mora High School Construction Update: Mora Public Schools, Superintendent

Dan Voce provided an update on the new high school construction The presentation
included aerial photos along with photos of the building’s interior of the construction.
Voce highlighted the forward progress of the project, and the exterior would be
completed up by year end. Questions arose on the access to the Wellness Center from
the High School and the Elementary School along with community member access to
the Wellness Center during school hours. Voce identified door/stairwell which limited
access to the upper level of the Wellness Center. He further explained that a key fob
would be used to access the Wellness Center and the connection of with Elementary
School. Voce extended an invitation to Council and staff for a tour of the project.

7. Public Hearings: There were no public hearings.

8. New Business:

a. 2023 Preliminary Budget Approval: City Administrator Glenn Anderson presented the
2023 Preliminary Budget. Anderson explained there had been a formula calculation
error and the amount presented in the staff report did not reflect. Anderson explained
the error was identified that afternoon and Anderson proceeded to communicate the
information to the council members via email. The preliminary tax levy presented
reflected a 30.23% increase factoring in the HRA debt tax levy. The presented budget
was a $361,101 increase over the 2022 budget levy. Glenn Anderson identified the areas
that heavily impacted the preliminary budget which included the HRA Debt Service, 3%

Page1of4



City Council Meeting Minutes
September 06, 2022

COLA salary increase, projected 9.5% health insurance increase, projected 15% increase
in workers compensation insurance. Glenn Anderson recommended a City Council Work
Session to reduce the levy amount. Mayor Skramstad suggested a sub-committee rather
than work session due to the public meeting posting requirements and to review in
depth the budget prior to finalizing the 2023 preliminary budget with Kanabec County.
Councilmember Jody Anderson and Council Member Jake Mathison requested to be
part of the committee. The sub-committee would meet and discuss items that could
assist with decreasing the overall 2023 preliminary budget. MOTION made by
Broekemeier, seconded by Shepard, and carried to have Council Member Anderson and
Mathison review with staff and find budget reductions if possible.

9. Old Business

b.

Airport Final Payment Request: Kohlgraf brought forward the Airport Final Payment
Request for the Airport Taxi Lane and Supplemental Windcone payment request from
SEH. The final payment amount for the project is $3,643.29. MOTION made by
Anderson, seconded by Mathison Motion to approve the Airport Taxi Lane
Supplemental Windcone in the amount of $3,643.29 to Douglas Kerr Underground, LLC.

Airport Hangar Land Lease Agreement: Community Development Director Faurie
brought forward the Airport Hangar Land Lease proposed changes on behalf of the
Airport Board for review and explained the changes identified were in marked in Red. The
Airport Board requested the City Council have the City Attorney review any changes and
bring the suggested revisions back to the board prior to city council’s final approval and
adoption.

The Council discussed their concerns of the Land Lease Agreement and continued
discussions after its adoption and belief that the revisions would discuss two items that
had been in question and not a complete revision of suggested changes. The Council
discussed their willingness to work with the Airport Board within reason but must also
consider what is best to safeguard the city. Kohlgraf explained that the climate and
collaboration had changed amongst the Board and Council. Councilmember Anderson
provided a summary of the concerns brought forward from the Airport Board, the
updated lease, the change in administration and concerns that came from
implementation of the new lease. Anderson explained the former lease had been 25 years
old and needed to be updated.

The Council proceeded to review the red-lined items in the Hangar Land Lease Agreement
for Privately Owned Hangers.

(SEE DRAFT AGREEMENT WITH SUGGESTED AND ACCEPTED CHANGES ATTACHED)
The Council further discussed the placement of insurance within the lease agreement

and liable party if an incident were to occur. The Council recognized some of the
proposed changes were eliminated due to the placement within the lease agreement and

Page 2of4



City Council Meeting Minutes

September 06,

C.

2022

repetitive content.

The Council discussed the City Remedies and legal processes for entering tenant premises

and due cause. The discussion of lawful entry was discussed, and the consensus was that
entry to the premises would occur with due cause and legal processes.

Council directed staff to ensure the changes proposed to the Airport Board were
consistent with the minutes.

(SEE DRAFT AGREEMENT WITH SUGGESTED AND ACCEPTED CHANGES ATTACHED).

EDA County Seat Representative: Kirsten Faurie brought forward Kanabec County
Economic Development Authority vacant seat for the City representative. Council had
previously recommended Angela Grasfstrom, Community Development Director, for the
county’s EDA board in April, 2022 and Grafstrom has since resigned from the City of
Mora. MOTION made by Broekemeier, seconded Anderson and unanimously carried to
recommend Community Development Director Kirsten Faurie as the City Seat on the
Kanabec County Economic Development Authority Board to Kanabec County.

10. Communications: There were no communications discussed.

11. Reports

a.

City Administrator: Glenn Anderson stated there had been a recent meeting which
discussed the driver’s license operations and that he would be scheduling a time to meet
with the Council and PUC representatives.

Councilmember Anderson: Asked if the City Council Packets could be sent out
Wednesday or Thursday versus Friday evening.

Councilmember Broekemeier: Asked if there had been an update on the Special Session
request from the local government sources and explained her professional contacts did
not anticipate further action. Broekemeier shared information on an upcoming webinar
with the League of Minnesota Cities that addressed females in administration.
Councilmember Mathison: Nothing new to report.

. Councilmember Shepard: Nothing new to report.

Mayor Skramstad: Provided an update on the Veterans Memorial and early stages of the
project have broken ground.

12. Adjournment: MOTION by Shepard, seconded by Mathison, and unanimously carried to
adjourn at 7:45PM.

Mayor

Page 3 of4



City Council Meeting Minutes
September 06, 2022

City Clerk

Page 4 of 4



Meeting Minutes Enclosure item 4b

Mora City Council's proposed changes during 9-6-22 meeting

* "red-lined" document on left is the airport board revisions presented to the council
* "Comments" in right margin are city council changes

CITY OF MORA
MORA MUNICIPAL AIRPORT
HANGAR LAND LEASE AGREEMENT FOR PRIVATELY OWNED HANGARS

This Agreement (“Lease”), made this day of ,20___, is made between the
City of Mora, a public corporation of the State of Minnesota, at 101 Lake Street South, Mora,
Minnesota 55051 (“City”) and (“Tenant”) for the purpose of

outlining the rights and responsibilities of the parties to this Lease. The parties agree as follows:

1. Lease of Airport Property. The Tenant leases from the City a private hangar lot, as described
on a map located at Mora City Hall. The lot is situated upon the Mora Municipal Airport, located
at 2085 Mahogany St., Mora, MN 55051, an airport owned by the City (“Airport”). This Lease
is for lot # (hereinafter referred to as “Premises”). The Premises is leased together with
land and any improvements that may have been placed on it.

2. Use of the Airport.

a. The Tenant has the privilege of using the public portions of the airport in common with
other users. Tenant shall have the right to conduct all operations authorized pursuant to
the terms of this Lease, provided, however, that this Lease shall not be deemed to grant
to Tenant, or those claiming under Tenant, the exclusive right to use any part or portion of
the airport other than the premises. Use of the airport is subject to the rules and conditions
as now exist or may be enacted in the future by the City, the State of Minnesota, or the
United States government. The Tenant is subject to customary charges for such use as
may be established from time to time by the City.

b. Nothing in this Lease shall be constructed as obliging the City to maintain and operate thg
public portions of the airport during the entire term of this lease. It is specifically understood
and agreed between Tenant and City that the City has the right and power to discontinub
and terminate all public airport activities at the airport at any time it deems advisable and
upon such discontinuance and termination, would not be liable to Tenant in damages and
would have no obligations to Tenant, except as otherwise provided by law. In the event
City discontinues and terminates all public airport activities on the airport, Tenant shall
have the right to terminate this lease effective on the date of such discontinuance and
termination as effective on the first day of any month thereafter by giving Lessor sixty (60)
days written notice of such termination.

3. Proof of Aircraft Ownership. Tenant shall maintain appropriate registration and
certifications on all airworthy aircraft that are stored on Premises. This Lease does not prohibit
an individual who does not own or operate aircraft from owning a hangar or entering into this
Lease. Further, this Lease does not require that the aircraft stored on the Premises be owned
by the Tenant.

4. Aircraft Registration. Tenant agrees that any aircraft that is based at, stored at, or utilizes
the facility under the Lease, shall be currently in compliance with the airport registration
requirements set forth in Minnesota Statutes Chapter 360.

5. Use of the Hangar. The Premises shall be used for the majority purpose of storing aircraft

and related aviation items. This Lease does not prohibit the storage of aircraft which are
unregistered or not considered airworthy.

Adopted by the Mora City Council 10-19-2021 Page 1 of 12

VS



Meeting Minutes Enclosure

6. Term of this Lease.

a.

Initial Term. The term of this Lease shall be twenty (20) years (“Term”), commencing on
20 (“Commencement Date”) and expiring, unless earlier
terminated, on ,20_ .

7. Lease Payments. Tenant agrees to pay the City:

a.

b.

Hangar Land Lease Rent. The Tenant shall pay the City rent for the Premises in the
amount of $_.10 per square foot per year, as determined by outside dimensions
of the building or continue with the current rate for an existing tenant. Rent is due for the
calendar year in advance to be paid annually by the 31st day of January, beginning
January 31,20___. Rent shall be paid to City at the address specified in this Lease. Rent
shall be pro-rate for any portion of a calendar year.

Adjustment of Rent. The City reserves the right to adjust rent each five-year anniversary
date of this Lease by an amount not to exceed ten percent (10%) of the rent preceding
the anniversary date of the Lease. Tenant shall pay in full on or before the five year
anniversary date of the lease the pro-rated amount of the increased rent for the months
remaining in the calendar year.

Late Fee. If Tenant fails to pay any fees when due to City, Tenant shall pay a late fee
which is the lesser of ten percent (10%) on any past due balance.

8. Construction of Private Buildings on Premises.

a.

Any structure built upon the Premises shall be constructed in compliance with applicable
building codes and any building requirements established by the City Council. The building
and any attachments and appurtenances, other than ramps or driveways, must be located
entirely upon the Premises. Any building constructed shall be used for the sele-majority

purpose of_aviation-sterage—of aircraftregistered-orleased-to-theTenant-andrelated

The Tenant agrees that any building shall be constructed at no cost to the City. In the
event the Tenant has not completed construction of the building on the Premises within
twelve (12) months from the date of this Lease, the City may terminate the Lease without
further obligation to the Tenant.

Prior to construction of any building located on Premises, the Tenant shall furnish to the
City, for the Airport Advisory Board’s review and the City Council’s approval, the plans for
the building, and provide the estimated cost of completing the building. The Tenant shall
provide the City with a letter of credit, bond, or other security with a surety satisfactory to
the City conditioned upon the commencement, completion of and payment for the
construction of the building; and against loss or damage by reason of mechanics lien. City
staff may specify the acceptable form of surety.

The Tenant shall obtain the necessary regulatory authority and permits from the City. All
construction shall be completed in a professional like manner and shall be in conformity
with building codes, ordinances, and other regulations applicable to the City and Mora
Municipal Airport.

Tenant shall construct aircraft storage facilities that conform to the City approved plans
and design standards approved by the City Council. These design standards may include
color, style, size, and other aesthetic requirements. Construction and significant

Adopted by the Mora City Council 10-19-2021 Page 2 of 12

item 4b

VS



Meeting Minutes Enclosure item 4b

improvement may not begin before receiving written authority from the City. Hangars and
exterior improvements shall be painted with white walls, white roof and brown trim. The
roof shall be pitched and made of galvanized steel. These requirements shall only apply
to new construction; existing hangars will not be required to comply with these
requirements unless the Tenant is replacing entire exterior components (i.e. roof, trim, or
walls).

f. Tenant shall pay the entire cost of such construction, and shall pay the entire cost of utility
services and other required buildings systems. The Tenant shall pay all site improvement
costs, including but not limited to grading, gravel, bituminous, concrete, utility installations,
and any other improvements required on the leased property. Tenant shall not permit
filing of any mechanic liens against the premises.

g. Other than the hangar described in Paragraph 7 of this Lease, Tenant shall not construct
or place on the Premises any structure or improvement without the written consent of the
City, both as to the location and type of structure to be constructed or placed on the
Premises. Tenant must submit to City a formal application describing the improvement to
be made.

h. Tenant shall not erect or permit to be erected on the Premises or on the exterior of any
building any sign or any type without the prior written consent of the City.

9. Maintenance of Leased Property.

a. Tenant, at its own cost and expense, shall take good care of the Premises and any
buildings or structures placed thereon. Tenant shall keep and maintain the Premises in
good order and repair and in a clean and neat condition. Tenant shall not be allowed to
store items outside of the building located on the Premises.

b. Tenant shall not permit any waste or nuisance on the Premises nor permit anything on the
Premises to interfere with the rights of other tenants of the City or uses of the airport. In
the event the Premises is not properly maintained, the City may, after notifying the Tenant,
cause the property to be maintained. The costs of maintenance and an administrative fee
will be billed to the Tenant and become Tenant's responsibility. Unpaid billings shall be
certified to property taxes in the manner provided by law.

c. The cost of customary maintenance routinely performed by the City, related to areas
affecting the value or use of Premises, are included in the annual lease costs charged for
the Premises, and except as otherwise provided herein, includes snow removal, grounds
maintenance and maintenance of apron areas. Snow removal is performed by City
employees on a priority basis. The City of Mora reserves the right to perform snow removal
functions in whatever manner it deems necessary. In any case, snow removal in front of
buildings is the Tenant's responsibility. The City is not required to perform any snow
removal function on Premises, but may plow on or adjacent to leased properties to
expedite other snow removal operations at the airport. Mowing and weed control are the
Tenant’s responsibility; however, the City may mow or perform weed control adjacent to
leased properties to expedite other maintenance operations. The City shall establish the
standards by which ramp areas and other paved surfaces are maintained.

10. Hazardous Materials. Tenant shall not store hazardous materials on the Premises except

those such materials normal to and reasonably necessary for aircraft operation and such
maintenance operations reasonably conducted on the Premises. All hazardous materials shall

Adopted by the Mora City Council 10-19-2021 Page 3 of 12



Meeting Minutes Enclosure

be stored, handled, and disposed of properly in accordance with all local, state and federal
rules and regulations, and any spill or discharge shall be immediately reported to the City.
Improper storage, use, handling, or disposal of hazardous materials shall be grounds for
termination of this Lease.

11. Taxes, Assessments and Other Charges.

a.

In addition to other charges identified in this Lease, the Tenant shall pay all taxes,
assessments, licenses, fees, or other charges that may be imposed by any other
governmental authority during the Term of this Lease upon the Premises, buildings,
improvements or property located thereon, or upon Tenant's use or occupancy, for
whatever term deemed applicable to Tenant by that governmental authority. Tenant shall
pay these amounts without deduction or set-off against Rent to be paid under this Lease.

Tenant shall pay for all water, sanitary sewer, gas, electricity, telephone, refuse collection,
charges or other similar charges used on or attributable to the Premises, together with any
connection fees, taxes, penalties, interest or surcharge associated with such utilities and
charges.

12. Default.

a.

Events of Default. Any of the following shall constitute a default under this Lease:
(1) Tenant fails to pay money owed to City under this Lease when due, and such failure
continues for ten (10) days after written notice from City to Tenant.

(2) Tenant uses the Premises for any purpose not expressly authorized by this Lease and
such default continues for ten (10) days following written notice from City to Tenant.

(3) Tenant fails to allow an inspection in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Lease and such default continues for ten (10) days following written notice from City
to Tenant.

(4) Tenant assigns, sublets or transfers this Lease except as otherwise permitted, and
such default continues for ten (10) days following written notice from City to Tenant.

WL UL

{6)(5) Tenant vacates or abandons the Premises, and such default continues for ten (10)
days following written notice from City to Tenant.

{AH(6) Tenant fails to discharge, by payment or bond, any lien, or encumbrance placed
upon the Premises or improvements in violation of this Lease within thirty (30) days
following written notice from City to Tenant that any such lien or encumbrance is filed
against the Premises and/or improvements.

{8)(7) Tenant (a) makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors; (b) commences
any case, proceeding or other action seeking to have an order for relief entered or to
adjudicate Tenant bankrupt or insolvent, or seeking reorganization, arrangement,
adjustment, liquidation, dissolution or composition of it or its debts or seeking

Adopted by the Mora City Council 10-19-2021 Page 4 of 12

item 4b

VS



Meeting Minutes Enclosure item 4b

appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar official for it or for all or
any substantial part of its property; or (c) involuntarily becomes the subject of any
proceeding for relief which is not dismissed within sixty (60) days of its filing or entry.

{9)(8) Tenant fails to comply with any other term or condition of this Lease and such
default continues for more than thirty (30) days after written notice from City to Tenant,
or for a longer period of time as may be reasonably necessary to cure the default, but
only if: (i) Tenant is reasonably capable of curing the default, and (ii) is working
diligently as determined by City to cure the default.

b. City Remedies. If a default occurs, City, at its option and in its sole discretion, may at any

(1) With legal process, but without further notice to Tenant, re-enter the Premises or
any part thereof and take possession of it fully and absolutely, without such re-entry
working a forfeiture of the money to be paid and the terms and conditions to be
performed by Tenant for the full Term of this Lease. City’s re-entry of the Premises is
not a termination of this Lease. In the event of such re-entry, City may proceed for the
collection of money to be paid under this Lease or for properly measured damages;

{3)(2) Terminate this Lease upon written notice to Tenant and re-enter the Premises and
Tenant covenants in the case of such termination to indemnify City against all loss of
rents and expenses during the remainder of the term; and

{4)(3) Exercise all other rights and remedies including injunctive relief, ejectment, or
summary proceedings such as an eviction action and any other lawful remedies,
actions or proceedings.

In the event of any default and for any type of remedy chosen by City, Tenant shall
reimburse City for all reasonable fees and costs incurred by City, including reasonable
attorneys’ fees, relating to such default and/or the enforcement of City’s rights hereunder,
and costs incurred attempting to cure a default. Any and all legal remedies, actions, and
proceedings shall be cumulative.

c. Cumulative Default. Except as specifically set forth herein, the remedies provided under
this Lease shall be deemed to be cumulative and non-exclusive and the election of one
remedy shall not be deemed to be to be the waiver of any other remedy with regard to any
occasion of default hereunder.

d. Default of Other Agreements. A default by Tenant of any other agreement between
Tenant and City shall constitute of default of this Lease. Notice of a default in another
agreement shall be deemed notice of default under this Lease.

13. Termination Provisions.
a. At the termination of this Lease the Tenant has the right to removing all buildings and
property placed upon the Premises. The Tenant shall have a period of ninety (90) days
from the termination date to remove property. In the event the Tenant cannot complete

Adopted by the Mora City Council 10-19-2021 Page 5 of 12



14.

15.

Meeting Minutes Enclosure

the removal within ninety (90) days, the City may grant an extension of time in its sole
discretion, for up to six (6) months, if the Tenant can demonstrate the reasons for failure
to remove property within the ninety (90) day period are beyond the control of the Tenant.
If the Tenant does not remove the property within the period granted by the City, the City
may retain ownership of the building and property for any municipal purpose.

b. If the Premises becomes deserted, abandoned or vacated for a continuous period of
twelve (12) months, the City may terminate the Lease. For the purpose of this Agreement,
desertion, abandonment, or vacation shall be defined as the Tenant’s relinquishment of
his/her interest, claim, or right to the premises with the intent of never again resuming or
reasserting it. If the Tenant’s interest in the property is taken by process of law, the City
may terminate the Lease. If the buildings or properties on the Premises are destroyed, the
City or Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Agreement upon giving written notice
to the other party.

c. Should the Premises be declared condemned by the City, either because the airport is
closed to the public or the property is needed for another municipal purpose, the City shall
provide the Tenant with ninety (90) days’ notice of such action. In the event the Tenant
cannot complete the removal within ninety (90) days, the City may grant an extension of
time, in its sole discretion, for up to six (6) months, if the Tenant can demonstrate the
reasons for failure to remove property are beyond the control of the Tenant.

d. Tenant may cancel this agreement and all or any of his obligations hereunder at any time
by giving thirty (30) days written notice to the Lessor. Tenant shall not be entitled to any
refund of rent paid in the event of such cancellation.

Surrender of Premises. At the expiration of the term of this Lease and any renewal or
extension, or sooner termination, Tenant shall surrender the leased Premises in as good
condition as it was at the date of the commencement of this Lease. Tenant shall, at Tenant’s
own expense, remove the building described in Paragraph 7 of this Lease, as well as any
other improvements placed on the Premises by Tenant, unless the parties otherwise agree.
Tenant must repair any damage to the Premises caused by the removal within thirty (30) days.

Liability and Indemnification. Tenant agrees to indemnify and hold City harmless from any
and all loss, damage, claims, judgments, litigation expenses and costs for any injury to
persons or damage to property from any act or omission of Tenant, its employees, agents,
subsidiaries, licensees, guests, invitees, successors or assigns while on or about the Airport
or the Leased Premises, and the City shall not be liable to any extent for, nor will Tenant make
any claim against the City for or on account of any injury, loss or damage to the Premises, the
buildings or structures thereon, the personal property and facilities located therein, or to any
person or property at any time on the Premises whether occasioned by fire, water, smoke,
steam, gas, electricity or other agency or instrumentality which may come or be on the Leased
Premises or occasioned by any other cause.

Nothing in this Lease shall cau